

1           **SECTION 994p.** 36.27 (1) (am) of the statutes is repealed.

2           **SECTION 994t.** 36.27 (1) (bm) of the statutes is repealed.

3           **SECTION 994x.** 36.27 (1) (c) of the statutes is repealed.

4           **SECTION 995.** 36.27 (2) (cr) of the statutes is repealed.

5           **SECTION 995e.** 36.27 (3m) (d) of the statutes is repealed.

6           **SECTION 995g.** 36.27 (3n) (a) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

7           36.27 (3n) (a) (intro.) In this subsection, ~~“eligible veteran”~~ subsection:

8           1m. “Eligible veteran” means a person verified by the department of veterans  
9           affairs to be either of the following:

10           **SECTION 995j.** 36.27 (3n) (a) 1. of the statutes is renumbered 36.27 (3n) (a) 1m.

11           a.

12           **SECTION 995m.** 36.27 (3n) (a) 1g. of the statutes is created to read:

13           36.27 (3n) (a) 1g. “Academic fees” means the amount charged to a resident  
14           student to enroll in a degree credit course, including the University of  
15           Wisconsin-Madison Executive MBA Program. In the case of a distance education,  
16           online, or other course for which the amount charged to enroll in the course equals  
17           at least 100 percent of the cost of offering the course, “academic fees” includes the  
18           regular fees charged to a resident student to enroll in the course and any additional  
19           fees charged to that student to enroll in that course, other than fees charged for  
20           books, supplies, meals, parking, travel, and other miscellaneous expenses incurred  
21           for attending the course.

22           **SECTION 995n.** 36.27 (3n) (a) 2. of the statutes is renumbered 36.27 (3n) (a) 1m.

23           b. and amended to read:

24           36.27 (3n) (a) 1m. b. A person who was a resident of this state at the time of  
25           entry into service described in subd. ~~1.~~ 1m. a. and who the U.S. department of veteran

1 affairs has awarded at least a 30 percent service-connected disability rating under  
2 38 USC 1114 or 1134.

3 **SECTION 997e.** 36.27 (3n) (bg) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 36.27 (3n) (bg) Before the Board of Regents may grant a remission of academic  
5 fees and segregated fees under par. (b), the Board of Regents shall require the  
6 resident student to apply to the payment of those fees all educational assistance to  
7 which the resident student is entitled under 38 USC 3319. If that educational  
8 assistance covers 100 percent of those fees for a credit or semester, that credit or  
9 semester shall not count against the 128 credit or 8 semester limit provided in par.  
10 (b). If that educational assistance covers less than 100 percent of those fees for a  
11 credit or semester and the remission under par. (b) covers the remainder of those fees,  
12 the credit or semester shall count against that limit in the proportion that the  
13 remission bears to the total academic fees and segregated fees charged for that credit  
14 or semester. This requirement applies notwithstanding the fact that the resident  
15 student may be entitled to educational assistance under 10 USC 16132a, 10 USC  
16 16163a, or 38 USC 3500 to 3566 as well as under 38 USC 3319, unless the resident  
17 student has 12 months or less of eligibility remaining for educational assistance  
18 under 10 USC 16132a, 10 USC 16163a, or 38 USC 3500 to 3566.

19 **SECTION 997g.** 36.27 (3p) (a) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 36.27 (3p) (a) (intro.) In this subsection, ~~“veteran”~~ subsection:

21 1r. “Veteran” means a person who is verified by the department of veterans  
22 affairs as being a resident of this state for purposes of receiving benefits under ch.  
23 45, as being a resident at the time of his or her entry into the U.S. armed forces or  
24 forces incorporated in the U.S. armed forces, and as meeting any of the following  
25 conditions:

1           **SECTION 997i.** 36.27 (3p) (a) 1. of the statutes is renumbered 36.27 (3p) (a) 1r.

2           a. and amended to read:

3           36.27 **(3p)** (a) 1r. a. The person has served on active duty for at least one  
4           qualifying term of service under ~~subds. 2. to 4.~~ subd. 1r. b. to d. under honorable  
5           conditions in the U.S. armed forces or in forces incorporated as part of the U.S. armed  
6           forces during a war period or in a crisis zone.

7           **SECTION 997k.** 36.27 (3p) (a) 1g. of the statutes is created to read:

8           36.27 **(3p)** (a) 1g. “Academic fees” has the meaning given in sub. (3n) (a) 1g.

9           **SECTION 997m.** 36.27 (3p) (a) 1m. of the statutes is created to read:

10          36.27 **(3p)** (a) 1m. “Nonresident tuition” means the amount charged to a  
11          nonresident student to enroll in a degree credit course, including the University of  
12          Wisconsin–Madison Executive MBA Program. In the case of a distance education,  
13          online, or other course for which the amount charged to enroll in the course equals  
14          at least 100 percent of the cost of offering the course, “nonresident tuition” includes  
15          the regular fees charged to a nonresident student to enroll in the course and any  
16          additional fees charged to that student to enroll in that course, other than fees  
17          charged for books, supplies, meals, parking, travel, and other miscellaneous  
18          expenses incurred for attending the course.

19          **SECTION 997p.** 36.27 (3p) (a) 2. of the statutes is renumbered 36.27 (3p) (a) 1r.

20          b.

21          **SECTION 997r.** 36.27 (3p) (a) 3. of the statutes is renumbered 36.27 (3p) (a) 1r.

22          c.

23          **SECTION 997t.** 36.27 (3p) (a) 4. of the statutes is renumbered 36.27 (3p) (a) 1r.

24          d.

1           **SECTION 997v.** 36.27 (3p) (a) 5. of the statutes is renumbered 36.27 (3p) (a) 1r.

2           e.

3           **SECTION 997y.** 36.27 (3p) (a) 6. of the statutes is renumbered 36.27 (3p) (a) 1r.

4           f.

5           **SECTION 999e.** 36.27 (3p) (bg) of the statutes is amended to read:

6           **36.27 (3p) (bg)** Before the Board of Regents may grant a remission of  
7 nonresident tuition, academic fees, and segregated fees under par. (b), the board  
8 shall require the student to apply to the payment of that tuition and those fees all  
9 educational assistance to which the student is entitled under 38 USC 3313. If that  
10 educational assistance covers 100 percent of that tuition and those fees for a credit  
11 or semester, that credit or semester shall not count against the 128 credit or 8  
12 semester limit provided in par. (b). If that educational assistance covers less than  
13 100 percent of that tuition and those fees for a credit or semester and the remission  
14 under par. (b) covers the remainder of that tuition and those fees, the credit or  
15 semester shall count against that limit in the proportion that the remission bears to  
16 the total nonresident tuition, academic fees, and segregated fees charged for that  
17 credit or semester. This requirement applies notwithstanding the fact that the  
18 student may be entitled to educational assistance under 10 USC 16131 to 16137, 10  
19 USC 16161 to 16166, or 38 USC 3001 to 3036 as well as under 38 USC 3313, unless  
20 the student has 12 months or less of eligibility remaining for educational assistance  
21 under 10 USC 16131 to 16137, 10 USC 16161 to 16166, or 38 USC 3001 to 3036.

22           **SECTION 1001e.** 36.27 (6) of the statutes is created to read:

23           **36.27 (6) SEGREGATED FEES.** The board shall ensure that segregated fees are  
24 used only for the purpose for which they are charged.

25           **SECTION 1001m.** 36.29 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

1           36.29 (6) The board may not accept any gift, grant or bequest of real property  
2 with a value in excess of ~~\$30,000~~ \$150,000 except as provided in s. 13.48 (2) (b) 1m.

3           **SECTION 1001s.** 36.30 of the statutes is amended to read:

4           **36.30 Sick leave.** Leave of absence for ~~persons holding positions under s.~~  
5 ~~20.923 (4g) and (5), faculty and academic staff personnel~~ employees with pay, owing  
6 to sickness, shall be regulated by rules of the board, except that unused sick leave  
7 shall accumulate from year to year.

8           **SECTION 1003.** 36.335 of the statutes is amended to read:

9           **36.335 Sale of other land; buildings and structures.** Except as provided  
10 in s. 36.33, if the ~~Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System~~ board sells  
11 any real property under its jurisdiction ~~during the period beginning on October 27,~~  
12 ~~2007, and ending on June 30, 2009, and the period beginning on July 1, 2009,~~ the  
13 board shall credit the net proceeds of the sale to the appropriation account under s.  
14 20.285 (1) (iz) (gb) except that if there is any outstanding public debt used to finance  
15 the acquisition, construction, or improvement of any property that is sold, the board  
16 shall deposit a sufficient amount of the net proceeds from the sale of the property in  
17 the bond security and redemption fund under s. 18.09 to repay the principal and pay  
18 the interest on the debt, and any premium due upon refunding any of the debt. If  
19 the property was acquired, constructed, or improved with federal financial  
20 assistance, the board shall pay to the federal government any of the net proceeds  
21 required by federal law. If the property was acquired by gift or grant or acquired with  
22 gift or grant funds, the board shall adhere to any restriction governing use of the  
23 proceeds.

24           **SECTION 1004.** 36.34 (1) (a) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

25           36.34 (1) (a) 3. Is a Hispanic, as defined in s. ~~560.036~~ 16.287 (1) (d).

1           **SECTION 1004m.** 36.34 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

2           36.34 (1) (b) The board shall establish a grant program for minority  
3 undergraduates enrolled in the system. The board shall designate all grants under  
4 this subsection as Lawton grants. ~~Grants shall be awarded from the appropriation~~  
5 ~~under s. 20.285 (4) (dd).~~ The board may not make a grant under this subsection to  
6 a person whose name appears on the statewide support lien docket under s. 49.854  
7 (2) (b), unless the person provides to the board a payment agreement that has been  
8 approved by the county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and that is consistent  
9 with rules promulgated under s. 49.858 (2) (a).

10           **SECTION 1005.** 36.34 (1) (c) of the statutes is repealed.

11           **SECTION 1006m.** 36.36 (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

12           **36.36 Grants for study abroad.** (intro.) ~~From the appropriation under s.~~  
13 ~~20.285 (1) (er), the~~ The board shall may award a grant of up to \$2,000 to a resident  
14 undergraduate student to assist in paying the costs associated with the student's  
15 study abroad if the student satisfies all of the following criteria:

16           **SECTION 1010.** 36.46 (1) of the statutes is renumbered 36.46, and 36.46 (2), as  
17 renumbered, is amended to read:

18           36.46 (2) Notwithstanding ~~par. (a) sub. (1)~~, if, within 14 working days after the  
19 date of the secretary's notification, the cochairpersons of the committee do not notify  
20 the secretary that the committee has scheduled a meeting for the purpose of  
21 reviewing the secretary's proposed action, the proposed reserve funds may be  
22 accumulated. If, within 14 working days after the date of the secretary's notification,  
23 the cochairpersons of the committee notify the secretary that the committee has  
24 scheduled a meeting for the purpose of reviewing the secretary's proposed action, the

1 proposed reserve funds may not be accumulated unless the committee approves that  
2 action.

3 **SECTION 1011.** 36.46 (2) of the statutes is repealed.

4 **SECTION 1014m.** 36.49 (3) of the statutes is created to read:

5 36.49 (3) Award the balance to the University of Wisconsin-Stevens Point for  
6 environmental programs.

7 **SECTION 1015e.** 36.52 of the statutes is amended to read:

8 **36.52 Reimbursement of pay supplements.** Whenever moneys become  
9 available from the federal government to finance the cost of pay and related  
10 adjustments for employees of the system ~~in the unclassified service~~ whose positions  
11 are wholly or partly funded from federal revenue under 7 USC 343 that have been  
12 paid from the appropriation under s. 20.865 (1) (cj) during the same fiscal year in  
13 which moneys are expended from that appropriation, the board shall reimburse the  
14 general fund for any expenditures made under s. 20.865 (1) (cj) from the appropriate  
15 appropriation to the board made from federal revenues.

16 **SECTION 1015m.** 36.53 (2) (a) of the statutes is renumbered 36.53 (2).

17 **SECTION 1015p.** 36.53 (2) (b) of the statutes is repealed.

18 **SECTION 1015r.** 36.54 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 36.54 (2) (b) From the appropriations under s. 20.285 (1) ~~(j)~~, (ge), (r), and (rc)  
20 the environmental education board shall award grants to corporations and public  
21 agencies for the development, dissemination and presentation of environmental  
22 education programs. Programs shall be funded on an 18-month basis. The  
23 environmental education board may not award a grant unless the grant recipient  
24 matches at least 25% of the amount of the grant. Private funds and in-kind

1 contributions may be applied to meet the matching requirement. Grants under this  
2 paragraph may not be used to replace funding available from other sources.

3 **SECTION 1015s.** 36.54 (2) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 36.54 (2) (c) The environmental education board shall promulgate rules  
5 establishing the criteria and procedures for the awarding of grants for programs and  
6 projects under par. (b). The environmental education board shall use the priorities  
7 established under sub. (1) for awarding grants if the amount in the appropriations  
8 under s. 20.285 (1) (j), (ge), (r), and (rc) in any fiscal year is insufficient to fund all  
9 applications under this subsection.

10 **SECTION 1015v.** 36.58 (5) of the statutes is repealed.

11 **SECTION 1015x.** 36.585 of the statutes is created to read:

12 **36.585 Telecommunications and information technology services. (1)**

13 In this section:

14 (a) "Telecommunications services" includes data and voice over Internet  
15 protocol services, Internet protocol services, broadband access and transport,  
16 information technology services, Internet access services, and unlit fiber.

17 (b) "Third-party entity" means a company, corporation, nonprofit association,  
18 joint venture, cooperative, partnership, or consortium.

19 (3) (a) Except as provided in par. (b), beginning July 1, 2013, the board may not  
20 be, and shall ensure that no institution or college campus is and that the extension  
21 is not, a member, shareholder, or partner in or with any third-party entity or other  
22 person that offers, resells, or provides telecommunications services to the general  
23 public or to any public or private entity unless at least one of the following applies:

24 1. The third-party entity or other person does not offer, resell, or provide  
25 telecommunications services that it did not offer, resell, or provide on June 15, 2011,



1 and the third-party entity or other person does not offer, resell, or provide  
2 telecommunications services to a private entity, to the general public, or to a public  
3 entity other than a university or a university-affiliated research facility or a facility  
4 approved by the joint committee on finance under sub. (4), that the third-party entity  
5 was not serving on June 15, 2011.

6 2. The third-party entity or other person is comprised entirely of universities  
7 and university-affiliated research facilities.

8 (b) The joint committee on finance may by majority vote postpone the  
9 prohibition under par. (a).

10 (4) Beginning June 15, 2011, the board may not commit, and shall ensure that  
11 no institution or college campus or the extension, commits, any funds received from  
12 the National Telecommunications and Information Administration in the federal  
13 department of commerce related to the Building Community Capacity Through  
14 Broadband Project grant awarded to the extension to any facilities to which such  
15 funds were not committed prior to June 15, 2011, without the approval of the joint  
16 committee on finance.

17 **SECTION 1016g.** 36.60 (3) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

18 36.60 (3) (b) The agreement shall specify that the responsibility of the board  
19 to make the payments under the agreement is subject to the availability of funds in  
20 the appropriations amount of funds transferred to the board under s. 20.505 (8) (hm)  
21 6r., the contributions received and penalties assessed by the board, and the  
22 appropriation under s. 20.285 (1) (je), (ks), and (qj).

23 **SECTION 1016k.** 36.60 (5) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

24 36.60 (5) (a) The obligation of the board to make payments under an agreement  
25 entered into under sub. (3) (b) is subject to the ~~availability of funds in the~~

1 appropriations amount of funds transferred to the board under s. 20.505 (8) (hm) 6r.,  
2 the contributions received and penalties assessed by the board, and the  
3 appropriation under s. 20.285 (1) (je), (ks), and (qj).

4 **SECTION 1016n.** 36.60 (5) (b) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 36.60 (5) (b) (intro.) If the cost of repaying the loans of all eligible applicants,  
6 when added to the cost of loan repayments scheduled under existing agreements,  
7 exceeds the total amount ~~in the appropriations of funds transferred to the board~~  
8 under s. 20.505 (8) (hm) 6r., the contributions received and penalties assessed by the  
9 board, and the appropriation under s. 20.285 (1) (je), (ks), and (qj), the board shall  
10 establish priorities among the eligible applicants based upon the following  
11 considerations:

12 **SECTION 1016p.** 36.60 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 36.60 (6) LOCAL PARTICIPATION. The board shall encourage contributions to the  
14 program under this section by counties, cities, villages, and towns. ~~Funds received~~  
15 ~~under this subsection shall be deposited in the appropriation under s. 20.285 (1) (je).~~

16 **SECTION 1016r.** 36.60 (6m) (a) of the statutes is renumbered 36.60 (6m).

17 **SECTION 1016t.** 36.60 (6m) (b) of the statutes is repealed.

18 **SECTION 1016w.** 36.61 (3) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 36.61 (3) (b) The agreement shall specify that the responsibility of the board  
20 to make the payments under the agreement is subject to the ~~availability of funds in~~  
21 ~~the appropriations amount of funds transferred to the board under s. 20.505 (8) (hm)~~  
22 ~~6r., the contributions received and penalties assessed by the board, and the~~  
23 ~~appropriation~~ under s. 20.285 (1) (je), (ks), and (qj).

24 **SECTION 1016y.** 36.61 (5) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

1           36.61 (5) (a) The obligation of the board to make payments under an agreement  
2 entered into under sub. (3) is subject to the availability of funds in the appropriations  
3 amount of funds transferred to the board under s. 20.505 (8) (hm) 6r., the  
4 contributions received and penalties assessed by the board, and the appropriation  
5 under s. 20.285 (1) (je), (ks), and (qj).

6           **SECTION 1017d.** 36.61 (5) (b) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

7           36.61 (5) (b) (intro.) If the cost of repaying the loans of all eligible applicants,  
8 when added to the cost of loan repayments scheduled under existing agreements,  
9 exceeds the total amount in the appropriations of funds transferred to the board  
10 under s. 20.505 (8) (hm) 6r., the contributions received and penalties assessed by the  
11 board, and the appropriation under s. 20.285 (1) (je), (ks), and (qj), the board shall  
12 establish priorities among the eligible applicants based upon the following  
13 considerations:

14           **SECTION 1017g.** 36.61 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

15           36.61 (6) LOCAL PARTICIPATION. The board shall encourage contributions to the  
16 program under this section by counties, cities, villages and towns. ~~Funds received~~  
17 ~~under this subsection shall be credited to the appropriation account under s. 20.285~~  
18 ~~(1) (je).~~

19           **SECTION 1017i.** 36.61 (6m) (a) of the statutes is renumbered 36.61 (6m).

20           **SECTION 1017k.** 36.61 (6m) (b) of the statutes is repealed.

21           **SECTION 1017m.** 36.65 of the statutes is created to read:

22           **36.65 Annual reports. (1) DEFINITION.** In this section, “chancellor” means  
23 the chancellor of the University of Wisconsin–Madison.

24           **(2) REPORTS.** Annually, the board and the chancellor shall each submit an  
25 accountability report to the governor and to the legislature under s. 13.172 (2). The

1 reports shall include all of the following information, the board's report with respect  
2 to the system other than the University of Wisconsin-Madison, and the chancellor's  
3 report with respect to the University of Wisconsin-Madison:

4 (a) *Performance.* The graduation rate, the total number of graduates, the time  
5 needed to graduate, the number of credits needed to obtain a degree, retention rates,  
6 placement of graduates, and the percentage of residents and nonresidents who  
7 reside in this state 10 years after graduation.

8 (b) *Financial.* Financial reports from each institution and each college campus,  
9 prepared using generally accepted accounting principles.

10 (c) *Access and affordability.* A profile of enrolled students, including mean per  
11 capita family income, the percentage of resident and nonresident students who are  
12 low-income, the percentage of resident and nonresident students who are members  
13 of minority groups, the number of transfers from other institutions and other colleges  
14 within this state, the published cost for resident students and the actual cost for  
15 resident students once financial aid is subtracted, and increases in available  
16 institutional financial aid for students with a demonstrated need.

17 (d) *Undergraduate education.* The extent of access to required courses and to  
18 popular majors, the majors offered, improvements in overall student experience,  
19 efforts to close the achievement gap between majority and underrepresented  
20 minority students, and post-graduation success.

21 (e) *Graduate and professional education.* The number of graduate degrees  
22 awarded; the number of professional graduates in key areas, including physicians,  
23 nurses, business, engineers, pharmacists, veterinarians, and lawyers; and  
24 incentives provided for remaining in this state after graduation.

1 (f) *Faculty*. A profile of the faculty, including faculty teaching loads, success or  
2 failure in recruiting and retaining scholars, and teachers who are rated at the top of  
3 their fields.

4 (g) *Economic development*. The amount and source of research funds and other  
5 new revenue brought into the state, the number of government contracts received,  
6 the number of research projects in progress or completed, the number of patents and  
7 licenses for system inventions, the number of new businesses created or spun off, the  
8 number of secondary businesses affiliated with the system or system-sponsored  
9 research projects, support provided to existing industries throughout the state, job  
10 growth from support to existing industries and new businesses, the number of jobs  
11 created in campus areas, the number of jobs created statewide, and a comparison of  
12 economic indicators for campus and other areas.

13 (h) *Collaboration*. Partnerships and collaborative relationships with system  
14 administration and institutions.

15 **SECTION 1088.** 38.04 (1m) (b) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 38.04 (1m) (b) (intro.) The board, in consultation with the department of  
17 commerce Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation, shall do all of the  
18 following for each economic development program administered by the board:

19 **SECTION 1089.** 38.04 (4) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 38.04 (4) (a) ~~Except as provided in par. (ag), the~~ The qualifications of  
21 educational personnel and the courses of study for each program offered in district  
22 schools shall be approved by the board. The board may charge the districts for the  
23 full costs associated with certification of educational personnel. Such certification  
24 expenses shall not be included in the district aidable cost.

25 **SECTION 1090.** 38.04 (4) (ag) of the statutes is repealed.

1           **SECTION 1091.** 38.04 (8) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

2           38.04 (8) (a) In this subsection, “minority group member” has the meaning  
3 given in s. ~~560.036~~ 16.287 (1) (f).

4           **SECTION 1092.** 38.04 (10m) (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

5           38.04 (10m) (title) ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE COORDINATION AND  
6 REPORTING.

7           **SECTION 1093.** 38.04 (10m) of the statutes is renumbered 38.04 (10m) (b) and  
8 amended to read:

9           38.04 (10m) (b) Annually, no later than October 1, the board shall submit to  
10 the joint legislative audit committee and to the appropriate standing committees of  
11 the legislature under s. 13.172 (3) a comprehensive report assessing economic  
12 development programs, as defined in sub. (1m) (a), administered by the board. The  
13 report shall include all of the information required under s. ~~560.01 (2) (am)~~ 238.07  
14 (2). The board shall collaborate with the ~~department of commerce~~ Wisconsin  
15 Economic Development Corporation to make readily accessible to the public on an  
16 Internet-based system the information required under this subsection.

17           **SECTION 1094.** 38.04 (10m) (a) of the statutes is created to read:

18           38.04 (10m) (a) The board shall coordinate any economic development  
19 assistance with the Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation.

20           **SECTION 1094g.** 38.15 (3) (e) of the statutes is created to read:

21           38.15 (3) (e) That portion of a capital expenditure funded with student housing  
22 payments for the purchase or construction, or the lease/purchase, of a student  
23 residence facility if the district board uses no revenue derived from its tax levy under  
24 s. 38.16, state aid received under s. 38.28, or fees and tuition collected under s. 38.24,

1 for the purchase or construction, or the lease/purchase, of the student residence  
2 facility.

3 **SECTION 1095.** 38.16 (3) of the statutes is created to read:

4 38.16 (3) (a) In this subsection:

5 1. "Department" means the department of revenue.

6 2. "Excess levy" means the amount by which a district board's tax levy exceeds  
7 the limit under par. (b).

8 3. "Tax levy" excludes taxes levied for the purpose of paying principal and  
9 interest on valid bonds and notes.

10 (b) Notwithstanding sub. (1), a district board's tax levy in 2011 and in 2012 may  
11 not exceed the greater of the following, except as provided in pars. (bg) and (br):

12 1. The district board's tax levy in 2010.

13 2. The amount generated using the mill rate used for the tax levy in 2010.

14 (bg) The limit otherwise applicable to a district board under par. (b) is increased  
15 by an amount equal to the amount of any refunded or rescinded property taxes paid  
16 by the district board in the year of the levy if the refunded or rescinded property taxes  
17 result in a redetermination of the district's equalized valuation by the department  
18 of revenue under s. 74.41.

19 (br) 1. If a district board wishes to exceed the limit under par. (b) otherwise  
20 applicable to the district in 2011 or 2012, it shall adopt a resolution supporting  
21 inclusion in the final district budget of an amount equal to the proposed excess levy.  
22 The resolution shall be filed as provided in s. 8.37. Within 10 days after adopting the  
23 resolution, the district board shall notify the board of the scheduled date of the  
24 referendum and submit a copy of the resolution to the board. The district board shall  
25 call a special referendum for the purpose of submitting the resolution to the electors

1 of the district for approval or rejection. In lieu of a special referendum, the district  
2 board may specify that the referendum be held at the next succeeding spring primary  
3 or election or September primary or general election, if such election is to be held not  
4 sooner than 42 days after the filing of the resolution of the district board. The district  
5 board shall certify the results of the referendum to the board within 10 days after the  
6 referendum is held.

7 2. The district board shall publish type A, B, C, D, and E notices of the  
8 referendum under s. 10.01 (2). Notwithstanding s. 10.01 (2) (a), the type A notice  
9 shall include a statement of the amount of the excess levy specified in subd. 1. and  
10 a copy of the resolution under subd. 1. Section 5.01 (1) applies in the event of failure  
11 to comply with the notice requirements of this subdivision.

12 3. The referendum shall be held in accordance with chs. 5 to 12. The district  
13 board shall provide the election officials with all necessary election supplies. The  
14 form of the ballot shall correspond substantially with the standard form for  
15 referendum ballots prescribed by the government accountability board under ss.  
16 5.64 (2) and 7.08 (1) (a). The question submitted shall be whether the limit under  
17 par. (b) may be exceeded by a specified amount. The limit otherwise applicable to the  
18 district under par. (b) is increased by the amount approved by a majority of those  
19 voting on the question.

20 (c) Except as provided in par. (d), if the board determines that a district board  
21 imposed an excess levy in 2011 or 2012, the board shall do all of the following:

22 1. Reduce the amount of state aid payments to the district board in the school  
23 year in which the district board imposed the excess levy by an amount equal to the  
24 amount of the excess levy.



1           2. Ensure that the amount of any reductions in state aid under subd. 1. lapses  
2 to the general fund.

3           3. Ensure that the amount of the excess levy is not included in determining the  
4 limit described under par. (b) for the district board for the following year.

5           4. Ensure that, if a district board's excess levy exceeds the amount of state aid  
6 that may be reduced under subd. 1., the excess amount is subtracted from state aid  
7 payments in the following years until the total amount of the excess levy is  
8 subtracted from the state aid payments.

9           (d) The department may issue a finding that a district board is not liable for  
10 a penalty that would otherwise be imposed under par. (c) if the department  
11 determines that the district board's excess levy is caused by one of the following  
12 clerical errors:

13           1. The department, through mistake or inadvertence, has assessed to any  
14 county or taxation district, in the current year or in the previous year, a greater or  
15 lesser valuation for any year than should have been assessed, causing the district  
16 board's levy to be erroneous in a way that directly causes an excess levy.

17           2. A taxation district clerk or a county clerk, through mistake or inadvertence  
18 in preparing or delivering the tax roll, causes a district board's levy to be erroneous  
19 in a way that directly causes an excess levy.

20           (e) Except as provided in par. (bg), a district board may not impose a tax levy  
21 at a rate greater than 1.5 mills on the full value of the taxable property of the district  
22 under this subsection.

23           **SECTION 1096.** 38.22 (6) (e) of the statutes is repealed.

24           **SECTION 1096bg.** 38.22 (6) (f) of the statutes is amended to read:

1           38.22 (6) (f) Any person verified by the department of veterans affairs as being  
2 a resident of this state under s. 38.24 (8) (a) 1r.

3           **SECTION 1097g.** 38.24 (7) (a) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

4           38.24 (7) (a) (intro.) In this subsection, ~~“eligible veteran”~~ subsection:

5           1m. “Eligible veteran” means a person verified by the department of veterans  
6 affairs to be either of the following:

7           **SECTION 1097j.** 38.24 (7) (a) 1. of the statutes is renumbered 38.24 (7) (a) 1m.

8 a.

9           **SECTION 1097m.** 38.24 (7) (a) 1p. of the statutes is created to read:

10           38.24 (7) (a) 1p. “Fees” means the amount charged to a resident student under  
11 sub. (1m) (a) to (c) to enroll in a course leading to an associate degree, collegiate  
12 transfer, or vocational diploma. In the case of a distance education, online, or other  
13 course for which the amount charged to enroll in the course equals at least 100  
14 percent of the cost of offering the course, “fees” includes the regular fees charged to  
15 a resident student under sub. (1m) (a) to (c) to enroll in the course and any additional  
16 fees charged to that student under sub. (1m) (a) to (c) to enroll in that course.

17           **SECTION 1097p.** 38.24 (7) (a) 2. of the statutes is renumbered 38.24 (7) (a) 1m.

18 b. and amended to read:

19           38.24 (7) (a) 1m. b. A person who was a resident of this state at the time of entry  
20 into service described in subd. ~~1.~~ 1m. a. and who the U.S. department of veteran  
21 affairs has awarded at least a 30 percent service-connected disability rating under  
22 38 USC 1114 or 1134.

23           **SECTION 1098b.** 38.24 (7) (b) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

24           38.24 (7) (b) (intro.) Except as provided in subds. 1. to 3. and par. (bg), the  
25 district board shall grant full remission of fees ~~under sub. (1m) (a) to (e)~~ for 128

1 credits or 8 semesters, whichever is longer, less the number of credits or semesters  
2 for which the person received remission of fees from any other district board under  
3 this subsection and from the Board of Regents under s. 36.27 (3n) (b) and less the  
4 amount of any fees paid under 38 USC 3319, to any resident student who is also any  
5 of the following:

6 **SECTION 1099b.** 38.24 (7) (bg) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 38.24 (7) (bg) Before the district board may grant a remission of fees under par.  
8 (b), the district board shall require the resident student to apply to the payment of  
9 those fees all educational assistance to which the resident student is entitled under  
10 38 USC 3319. If that educational assistance covers 100 percent of those fees for a  
11 credit or semester, that credit or semester shall not count against the 128 credit or  
12 8 semester limit provided in par. (b). If that educational assistance covers less than  
13 100 percent of those fees for a credit or semester and the remission under par. (b)  
14 covers the remainder of those fees, the credit or semester shall count against that  
15 limit in the proportion that the remission bears to the total fees charged for that  
16 credit or semester. This requirement applies notwithstanding the fact that the  
17 resident student may be entitled to educational assistance under 10 USC 16132a, 10  
18 USC 16163a, or 38 USC 3500 to 3566 as well as under 38 USC 3319, unless the  
19 resident student has 12 months or less of eligibility remaining for educational  
20 assistance under 10 USC 16132a, 10 USC 16163a, or 38 USC 3500 to 3566.

21 **SECTION 1099d.** 38.24 (7) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

22 38.24 (7) (c) The higher educational aids board shall reimburse the district  
23 board for all fees ~~under sub. (1m) (a) to (e)~~ remitted under par. (b) as provided in s.  
24 39.50 (2) and (3m).

25 **SECTION 1099g.** 38.24 (8) (a) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

1           38.24 (8) (a) (intro.) In this subsection, ~~“veteran”~~ subsection:

2           1r. “Veteran” means a person who is verified by the department of veterans  
3           affairs as being a resident of this state for purposes of receiving benefits under ch.  
4           45, as being a resident at the time of his or her entry into the U.S. armed forces or  
5           forces incorporated in the U.S. armed forces, and as meeting any of the following  
6           conditions:

7           **SECTION 1099i.** 38.24 (8) (a) 1. of the statutes is renumbered 38.24 (8) (a) 1r.  
8           a. and amended to read:

9           38.24 (8) (a) 1r. a. The person has served on active duty for at least one  
10          qualifying term of service under ~~subds. 2. to 4.~~ subd. 1r. b. to d. under honorable  
11          conditions in the U.S. armed forces or in forces incorporated as part of the U.S. armed  
12          forces during a war period or in a crisis zone.

13          **SECTION 1099k.** 38.24 (8) (a) 1g. of the statutes is created to read:

14          38.24 (8) (a) 1g. “Fees” has the meaning given in sub. (7) (a) 1p.

15          **SECTION 1099p.** 38.24 (8) (a) 2. of the statutes is renumbered 38.24 (8) (a) 1r.

16          b.

17          **SECTION 1099r.** 38.24 (8) (a) 3. of the statutes is renumbered 38.24 (8) (a) 1r.

18          c.

19          **SECTION 1099t.** 38.24 (8) (a) 4. of the statutes is renumbered 38.24 (8) (a) 1r.

20          d.

21          **SECTION 1099v.** 38.24 (8) (a) 5. of the statutes is renumbered 38.24 (8) (a) 1r.

22          e.

23          **SECTION 1099y.** 38.24 (8) (a) 6. of the statutes is renumbered 38.24 (8) (a) 1r.

24          f.

25          **SECTION 1100b.** 38.24 (8) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

1           38.24 (8) (b) Except as provided in par. (bg), the district board shall grant full  
2 remission of the fees charged ~~under sub. (1m) (a) to (e)~~ for 128 credits or 8 semesters,  
3 whichever is longer, less the number of credits or semesters for which the person  
4 received remission of fees from any other district board under this subsection and  
5 from the Board of Regents under s. 36.27 (3p) and less the amount of any fees paid  
6 under 10 USC 2107 (c), 38 USC 3104 (a) (7) (A), or 38 USC 3313, to any student who  
7 is a veteran.

8           **SECTION 1101e.** 38.24 (8) (bg) of the statutes is amended to read:

9           38.24 (8) (bg) Before the district board may grant a remission of fees under par.  
10 (b), the district board shall require the student to apply to the payment of those fees  
11 all educational assistance to which the student is entitled under 38 USC 3313. If that  
12 educational assistance covers 100 percent of those fees for a credit or semester, that  
13 credit or semester shall not count against the 128 credit or 8 semester limit provided  
14 in par. (b). If that educational assistance covers less than 100 percent of those fees  
15 for a credit or semester and the remission under par. (b) covers the remainder of those  
16 fees, the credit or semester shall count against that limit in the proportion that the  
17 remission bears to the total fees charged for that credit or semester. This  
18 requirement applies notwithstanding the fact that the student may be entitled to  
19 educational assistance under 10 USC 16131 to 16137, 10 USC 16161 to 16166, or 38  
20 USC 3001 to 3036 as well as under 38 USC 3313, unless the student has 12 months  
21 or less of eligibility remaining for educational assistance under 10 USC 16131 to  
22 16137, 10 USC 16161 to 16166, or 38 USC 3001 to 3036.

23           **SECTION 1101g.** 38.24 (8) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

1           38.24 (8) (c) The higher educational aids board shall reimburse the district  
2 board for all fees ~~under sub. (1m) (a) to (c)~~ remitted under par. (b) as provided in s.  
3 39.50 (2) and (3m).

4           **SECTION 1102.** 38.26 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

5           38.26 (1) In this section, “minority student” means a student enrolled in a  
6 district school who is a minority group member, as defined in s. ~~560.036~~ 16.287 (1)  
7 (f).

8           **SECTION 1105n.** 38.50 (12) (a) 1m. of the statutes is created to read:

9           38.50 (12) (a) 1m. A person described in sub. (1) (e) 1. whose administrative  
10 headquarters and principal place of business is in the village of Union Grove that  
11 provides a residential facility located in that village to assist young adults with  
12 disabilities in transitioning from home and school to work and independent living.

13           **SECTION 1105v.** 39.15 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

14           39.15 (1) (a) ~~One-third~~ Two of the members of the board of trustees of the  
15 Medical College of Wisconsin, Inc., shall be nominated by the governor, and, with the  
16 advice and consent of the senate, appointed for staggered 6-year terms expiring on  
17 ~~May 1~~ June 30.

18           **SECTION 1112.** 39.40 (1) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

19           39.40 (1) (c) A Hispanic, as defined in s. ~~560.036~~ 16.287 (1) (d).

20           **SECTION 1119.** 39.435 (7) (a) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

21           39.435 (7) (a) 1. For purposes of calculating the amount to be appropriated  
22 under s. 20.235 (1) (fe) for fiscal year ~~2011-12~~ 2013-14, “base amount” means the  
23 amount shown in the schedule under s. 20.005 for that appropriation for fiscal year  
24 ~~2010-11~~ 2012-13.

25           **SECTION 1120.** 39.435 (7) (a) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

1           39.435 (7) (a) 2. For purposes of calculating the amount to be appropriated  
2 under s. 20.235 (1) (fe) for each fiscal year after fiscal year ~~2011-12~~ 2013-14, “base  
3 amount” means the appropriation amount calculated under par. (b) for the previous  
4 fiscal year.

5           **SECTION 1121.** 39.435 (7) (b) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

6           39.435 (7) (b) (intro.) Biennially, beginning on February 1, ~~2011~~ 2013, the board  
7 shall calculate the amounts to be appropriated under s. 20.235 (1) (fe) for the next  
8 biennium as follows:

9           **SECTION 1125.** 39.437 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

10          39.437 (1) ESTABLISHMENT OF GRANT PROGRAM. There is established, to be  
11 administered by the board, ~~with the assistance of the office of the Wisconsin~~  
12 ~~Covenant Scholars Program in the department of administration as provided in~~  
13 ~~subs. (2) (a) 2., (4), and (5),~~ a Wisconsin Covenant Scholars Program to provide grants  
14 to students who meet the eligibility criteria specified in sub. (2).

15          **SECTION 1126.** 39.437 (2) (a) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

16          39.437 (2) (a) 2. The student has been designated as a Wisconsin covenant  
17 scholar by the ~~office of the Wisconsin Covenant Scholars Program in the department~~  
18 ~~of administration~~ board.

19          **SECTION 1127.** 39.437 (4) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

20          39.437 (4) (a) By February 1 of each year, the Board of Regents of the University  
21 of Wisconsin System shall provide to the ~~office of the Wisconsin Covenant Scholars~~  
22 ~~Program in the department of administration~~ board information relating to the  
23 resident undergraduate academic fees charged to attend each of the institutions  
24 within that system for the current academic year, the technical college system board  
25 shall provide to ~~that office~~ the board information relating to the fees under s. 38.24

1 (1m) (a) to (c) charged to attend each of the technical colleges within that system for  
2 the current academic year, each tribally controlled college in this state shall provide  
3 to ~~that office~~ the board information relating to the tuition and fees charged to attend  
4 the tribal college for the current academic year, and the Wisconsin Association of  
5 Independent Colleges and Universities or a successor organization shall provide to  
6 ~~that office~~ the board information relating to tuition and fees charged to attend each  
7 of the private, nonprofit, accredited institutions of higher education in this state for  
8 the current academic year.

9 **SECTION 1128.** 39.437 (4) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 39.437 (4) (b) By April 1 of each year, the ~~office of the Wisconsin Covenant~~  
11 ~~Scholars Program in the department of administration~~ board shall determine the  
12 average of the resident undergraduate academic fees charged for the current  
13 academic year among the institutions within the University of Wisconsin System,  
14 the average of the fees under s. 38.24 (1m) (a) to (c) charged for the current academic  
15 year among the technical colleges in this state, the average of the tuition and fees  
16 charged for the current academic year among the tribally controlled colleges in this  
17 state, and the average of the tuition and fees charged for the current academic year  
18 among the private, nonprofit, accredited institutions of higher education in this  
19 state.

20 **SECTION 1129.** 39.437 (4) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 39.437 (4) (c) To the extent permitted under 20 USC 1232g and 34 CFR part  
22 99, the department of public instruction shall provide pupil information to the ~~office~~  
23 ~~of the Wisconsin Covenant Scholars Program in the department of administration~~  
24 board as necessary for that office to fulfill its role in the administration of the grant  
25 program under this section.



1           **SECTION 1130.** 39.437 (5) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

2           39.437 **(5)** RULES. (intro.) The ~~department of administration~~ board shall  
3 promulgate rules to implement this section, including all of the following:

4           **SECTION 1131.** 39.437 (5) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

5           39.437 **(5)** (c) Any other rules the ~~department of administration~~ board  
6 considers necessary to assure the uniform administration of this section.

7           **SECTION 1132.** 39.437 (6) of the statutes is created to read:

8           39.437 **(6)** SUNSET. No student may enroll in the Wisconsin Covenant Scholars  
9 Program after September 30, 2011. After that date, the board may designate a  
10 student as a Wisconsin covenant scholar under sub. (2) (a) 2. only if the student  
11 enrolled in the Wisconsin Covenant Scholars Program by that date.

12           **SECTION 1133.** 39.44 (1) (a) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

13           39.44 **(1)** (a) 3. Is a Hispanic, as defined in s. 560.036 16.287 (1) (d).

14           **SECTION 1136m.** 40.02 (22) (ec) of the statutes is created to read:

15           40.02 **(22)** (ec) Includes contributions made by a reduction in salary as provided  
16 in s. 40.05 (1) (b).

17           **SECTION 1139.** 40.02 (25) (b) 2c. of the statutes is amended to read:

18           40.02 **(25)** (b) 2c. A state employee described in s. 49.825 (4) or (5) or 49.826 (4).

19           **SECTION 1139m.** 40.02 (28) of the statutes is amended to read:

20           40.02 **(28)** "Employer" means the state, including each state agency, any  
21 county, city, village, town, school district, other governmental unit or  
22 instrumentality of 2 or more units of government now existing or hereafter created  
23 within the state, any federated public library system established under s. 43.19  
24 whose territory lies within a single county with a population of 500,000 or more, a  
25 local exposition district created under subch. II of ch. 229, ~~a transit authority created~~

1 ~~under s. 66.1039~~, and a long-term care district created under s. 46.2895, except as  
2 provided under ss. 40.51 (7) and 40.61 (3). “Employer” does not include a local  
3 cultural arts district created under subch. V of ch. 229. Each employer shall be a  
4 separate legal jurisdiction for OASDHI purposes.

5 **SECTION 1139mb.** 40.02 (30) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 40.02 (30) “Executive participating employee” means a participating employee  
7 in a position designated under s. 19.42 (10) (L) or 20.923 (4), (4g), (7), (8), or (9) or  
8 authorized under s. 230.08 (2) (e) during the time of employment, and also includes  
9 the president and vice presidents of the University of Wisconsin System and the  
10 chancellors and vice chancellors who are serving as deputies of all University of  
11 Wisconsin institutions, the University of Wisconsin Colleges, and the University of  
12 Wisconsin-Extension. All service credited prior to May 17, 1988, as executive  
13 service as defined under s. 40.02 (31), 1985 stats., shall continue to be treated as  
14 executive service as defined under s. 40.02 (31), 1985 stats., but no other service  
15 rendered prior to May 17, 1988, may be changed to executive service as defined  
16 under s. 40.02 (31), 1985 stats.

17 **SECTION 1139r.** 40.02 (41n) of the statutes is created to read:

18 40.02 (41n) “Municipal employer” has the meaning given in s. 111.70 (1) (j).

19 **SECTION 1140.** 40.02 (48) (am) 22. of the statutes is amended to read:

20 40.02 (48) (am) 22. A person employed under s. 60.553 (1), 61.66 (1), or 62.13  
21 (2e) (a).

22 **SECTION 1141.** 40.02 (48) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 40.02 (48) (c) In s. 40.65, “protective occupation participant” means a  
24 participating employee who is a police officer, fire fighter, an individual determined  
25 by a participating employer under par. (a) or (bm) to be a protective occupation

1 participant, county undersheriff, deputy sheriff, state probation and parole officer,  
2 county traffic police officer, conservation warden, state forest ranger, field  
3 conservation employee of the department of natural resources who is subject to call  
4 for forest fire control or warden duty, member of the state traffic patrol, state motor  
5 vehicle inspector, University of Wisconsin System full-time police officer, guard or  
6 any other employee whose principal duties are supervision and discipline of inmates  
7 at a state penal institution, excise tax investigator employed by the department of  
8 revenue, person employed under s. 60.553 (1), 61.66 (1), 62.13 (2e) (a), or special  
9 criminal investigation agent employed by the department of justice.

10 **SECTION 1144.** 40.03 (6) (h) (intro.) and 2. of the statutes are consolidated,  
11 renumbered 40.03 (6) (h) and amended to read:

12 40.03 (6) (h) Shall, on behalf of the state, offer as provided in s. 40.55 long-term  
13 care insurance policies, ~~subject to the following conditions:~~ 2. For purposes of this  
14 section, the offering by the state of long-term health insurance policies shall  
15 constitute a group insurance plan under par. (a) 1.

16 **SECTION 1145.** 40.03 (6) (h) 1. of the statutes is repealed.

17 **SECTION 1145d.** 40.05 (1) (a) (intro.) of the statutes, as affected by 2011  
18 Wisconsin Act 10, is repealed and recreated to read:

19 40.05 (1) (a) (intro.) Subject to par. (b):

20 **SECTION 1145f.** 40.05 (1) (a) 1. of the statutes, as affected by 2011 Wisconsin  
21 Act 10, is repealed and recreated to read:

22 40.05 (1) (a) 1. For each participating employee not otherwise specified, a  
23 percentage of each payment of earnings equal to one-half of the total actuarially  
24 required contribution rate, as approved by the board under s. 40.03 (1) (e).

1           **SECTION 1145h.** 40.05 (1) (a) 2. of the statutes, as affected by 2011 Wisconsin  
2 Act 10, is repealed and recreated to read:

3           40.05 (1) (a) 2. For each participating employee whose formula rate is  
4 determined under s. 40.23 (2m) (e) 2., a percentage of each payment of earnings equal  
5 to one-half of the total actuarially required contribution rate, as approved by the  
6 board under s. 40.03 (1) (e).

7           **SECTION 1145j.** 40.05 (1) (a) 3. of the statutes, as affected by 2011 Wisconsin  
8 Act 10, is repealed and recreated to read:

9           40.05 (1) (a) 3. For each participating employee whose formula rate is  
10 determined under s. 40.23 (2m) (e) 3., the percentage of earnings paid by a  
11 participating employee under subd. 1.

12           **SECTION 1145L.** 40.05 (1) (a) 4. of the statutes, as affected by 2011 Wisconsin  
13 Act 10, is repealed and recreated to read:

14           40.05 (1) (a) 4. For each participating employee whose formula rate is  
15 determined under s. 40.23 (2m) (e) 4., the percentage of earnings paid by a  
16 participating employee under subd. 1.

17           **SECTION 1145n.** 40.05 (1) (b) of the statutes, as affected by 2011 Wisconsin Act  
18 10, is repealed and recreated to read:

19           40.05 (1) (b) 1. Except as otherwise provided in a collective bargaining  
20 agreement entered into under subch. IV or V of ch. 111 and except as provided in  
21 subd. 2., an employer may not pay, on behalf of a participating employee, any of the  
22 contributions required by par. (a). The contributions required by par. (a) shall be  
23 made by a reduction in salary and, for tax purposes, shall be considered employer  
24 contributions under section 414 (h) (2) of the Internal Revenue Code. A participating

1 employee may not elect to have contributions required by par. (a) paid directly to the  
2 employee or make a cash or deferred election with respect to the contributions.

3 2. a. A municipal employer shall pay, on behalf of a nonrepresented law  
4 enforcement or fire fighting managerial employee or a nonrepresented managerial  
5 employee described in s. 111.70 (1) (mm) 2., who was initially employed by the  
6 municipal employer before the effective date of this subd. 2. a. .... [LRB inserts date],  
7 the same contributions required by par. (a) that are paid by the municipal employer  
8 for represented law enforcement or fire fighting personnel or personnel described in  
9 s. 111.70 (1) (mm) 2. who were initially employed by the municipal employer before  
10 the effective date of this subd. 2. a. .... [LRB inserts date].

11 b. An employer shall pay, on behalf of a nonrepresented managerial employee  
12 in a position described under s. 40.02 (48) (am) 7. or 8., who was initially employed  
13 by the state before the effective date of this subd. 2. b. .... [LRB inserts date], in a  
14 position described under s. 40.02 (48) (am) 7. or 8. the same contributions required  
15 by par. (a) that are paid by the employer for represented employees in positions  
16 described under s. 40.02 (48) (am) 7. or 8. who were initially employed by the state  
17 before the effective date of this subd. 2. b. .... [LRB inserts date].

18 c. A municipal employer shall pay, on behalf of a represented law enforcement  
19 or fire fighting employee or employee described in s. 111.70 (1) (mm) 2., who was  
20 initially employed by the municipal employer before the effective date of this subd.  
21 2. c. .... [LRB inserts date], and who on or after the effective date of this subd. 2. c.  
22 .... [LRB inserts date], became employed in a nonrepresented law enforcement or fire  
23 fighting managerial position or nonrepresented managerial position described in s.  
24 111.70 (1) (mm) 2. with the same municipal employer, or a successor municipal  
25 employer in the event of a combined department that is created on or after the

1 effective date of this subd. 2. c. .... [LRB inserts date], the same contributions  
2 required by par. (a) that are paid by the employer for represented law enforcement  
3 or fire fighting personnel or personnel described in s. 111.70 (1) (mm) 2. who were  
4 initially employed by a municipal employer before the effective date of this subd. 2.  
5 c. .... [LRB inserts date].

6 **SECTION 1145rh.** 40.05 (4) (ag) of the statutes, as affected by 2011 Wisconsin  
7 Act 10, is repealed and recreated to read:

8 40.05 (4) (ag) Except as otherwise provided in a collective bargaining  
9 agreement under subch. V of ch. 111, the employer shall pay for its currently  
10 employed insured employees:

11 1. For insured part-time employees other than employees specified in s. 40.02  
12 (25) (b) 2., including those in project positions as defined in s. 230.27 (1), who are  
13 appointed to work less than 1,044 hours per year, an amount determined annually  
14 by the director of the office of state employment relations under par. (ah).

15 2. For eligible employees not specified in subd. 1. and s. 40.02 (25) (b) 2., an  
16 amount not more than 88 percent of the average premium cost of plans offered in the  
17 tier with the lowest employee premium cost under s. 40.51 (6), as determined  
18 annually by the director of the office of state employment relations under par. (ah).

19 **SECTION 1145rm.** 40.05 (4) (ah) of the statutes is created to read:

20 40.05 (4) (ah) Annually, the director of the office of state employment relations  
21 shall establish the amount that employees are required to pay for health insurance  
22 premiums in accordance with the maximum employer payments under par. (ag).

23 **SECTION 1145s.** 40.05 (4) (at) of the statutes is created to read:

24 40.05 (4) (at) An employer shall pay, on behalf of a nonrepresented managerial  
25 employee in a position described under s. 40.02 (48) (am) 7. or 8., who was initially

1 employed by the state before the effective date of this paragraph .... [LRB inserts  
2 date], the same premium contribution rates required by par. (ag) that are paid by the  
3 employer for represented employees in positions described under s. 40.02 (48) (am)  
4 7. or 8. who were initially employed by the state before the effective date of this  
5 paragraph .... [LRB inserts date].

6 **SECTION 1146.** 40.05 (4) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 40.05 (4) (b) Except as provided under pars. (bc) and (bp), accumulated unused  
8 sick leave under ss. 13.121 (4), 36.30, 230.35 (2), 233.10, 238.04 (8), and 757.02 (5)  
9 and subch. I, V, or VI of ch. 111 of any eligible employee shall, at the time of death,  
10 upon qualifying for an immediate annuity or for a lump sum payment under s. 40.25  
11 (1) or upon termination of creditable service and qualifying as an eligible employee  
12 under s. 40.02 (25) (b) 6. or 10., be converted, at the employee's highest basic pay rate  
13 he or she received while employed by the state, to credits for payment of health  
14 insurance premiums on behalf of the employee or the employee's surviving insured  
15 dependents. Any supplemental compensation that is paid to a state employee who  
16 is classified under the state classified civil service as a teacher, teacher supervisor,  
17 or education director for the employee's completion of educational courses that have  
18 been approved by the employee's employer is considered as part of the employee's  
19 basic pay for purposes of this paragraph. The full premium for any eligible employee  
20 who is insured at the time of retirement, or for the surviving insured dependents of  
21 an eligible employee who is deceased, shall be deducted from the credits until the  
22 credits are exhausted and paid from the account under s. 40.04 (10), and then  
23 deducted from annuity payments, if the annuity is sufficient. The department shall  
24 provide for the direct payment of premiums by the insured to the insurer if the  
25 premium to be withheld exceeds the annuity payment. Upon conversion of an

1 employee's unused sick leave to credits under this paragraph or par. (bf), the  
2 employee or, if the employee is deceased, the employee's surviving insured  
3 dependents may initiate deductions from those credits or may elect to delay  
4 initiation of deductions from those credits, but only if the employee or surviving  
5 insured dependents are covered by a comparable health insurance plan or policy  
6 during the period beginning on the date of the conversion and ending on the date on  
7 which the employee or surviving insured dependents later elect to initiate  
8 deductions from those credits. If an employee or an employee's surviving insured  
9 dependents elect to delay initiation of deductions from those credits, an employee or  
10 the employee's surviving insured dependents may only later elect to initiate  
11 deductions from those credits during the annual enrollment period under par. (be).  
12 A health insurance plan or policy is considered comparable if it provides hospital and  
13 medical benefits that are substantially equivalent to the standard health insurance  
14 plan established under s. 40.52 (1).

15 **SECTION 1147.** 40.05 (4) (bm) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 40.05 (4) (bm) Except as provided under par. (bp), accumulated unused sick  
17 leave under ss. 36.30 and 230.35 (2) ~~or, 233.10, or 238.04 (8)~~ of any eligible employee  
18 shall, upon request of the employee at the time the employee is subject to layoff under  
19 s. 40.02 (40), be converted at the employee's highest basic pay rate he or she received  
20 while employed by the state to credits for payment of health insurance premiums on  
21 behalf of the employee. Any supplemental compensation that is paid to a state  
22 employee who is classified under the state classified civil service as a teacher, teacher  
23 supervisor or education director for the employee's completion of educational courses  
24 that have been approved by the employee's employer is considered as part of the  
25 employee's basic pay for purposes of this paragraph. The full amount of the required



1 employee contribution for any eligible employee who is insured at the time of the  
2 layoff shall be deducted from the credits until the credits are exhausted, the  
3 employee is reemployed, or 5 years have elapsed from the date of layoff, whichever  
4 occurs first.

5 **SECTION 1153.** 40.05 (5) (b) 4. of the statutes is amended to read:

6 40.05 (5) (b) 4. The accrual and crediting of sick leave shall be determined in  
7 accordance with ss. 13.121 (4), 36.30, 230.35 (2), 233.10, 238.04 (8), and 757.02 (5)  
8 and subch. I, V, or VI of ch. 111.

9 **SECTION 1153d.** 40.22 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 40.22 (2) (a) Except as provided in sub. (2m), the employee was initially  
11 employed by a participating employer before the effective date of this paragraph ...  
12 [LRB inserts date], and is not expected to work at least one-third of what is  
13 considered full-time employment by the department, as determined by rule.

14 **SECTION 1153h.** 40.22 (2) (am) of the statutes is created to read:

15 40.22 (2) (am) Except as provided in sub. (2r), the employee was initially  
16 employed by a participating employer on or after the effective date of this paragraph  
17 ... [LRB inserts date], and is not expected to work at least two-thirds of what is  
18 considered full-time employment by the department, as determined by rule.

19 **SECTION 1156.** 40.22 (2) (m) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 40.22 (2) (m) Notwithstanding sub. (3m), the employee was formerly employed  
21 by Milwaukee County, is a state employee described in s. 49.825 (4) or (5) or 49.826  
22 (4), and ~~elects to remain~~ is a covered employee under the retirement system  
23 established under chapter 201, laws of 1937, pursuant to s. 49.825 (4) (c) or (5) (c) or  
24 49.826 (4) (c). ~~This paragraph shall not apply if the employee remains a state~~

1 ~~employee, but is no longer performing services for the Milwaukee County enrollment~~  
2 ~~services unit under s. 49.825 or the child care provider services unit under s. 49.826.~~

3 **SECTION 1156c.** 40.22 (2m) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 40.22 (2m) (intro.) An employee who was initially employed by a participating  
5 employer before the effective date of this subsection .... [LRB inserts date], who is not  
6 expected to work at least one-third of what is considered full-time employment by  
7 the department, as determined by rule, and who is not otherwise excluded under sub.  
8 (2) from becoming a participating employee shall become a participating employee  
9 if he or she is subsequently employed by the state agency or other participating  
10 employer for either of the following periods:

11 **SECTION 1156e.** 40.22 (2r) of the statutes is created to read:

12 40.22 (2r) An employee who was initially employed by a participating employer  
13 on or after the effective date of this subsection .... [LRB inserts date], who is not  
14 expected to work at least two-thirds of what is considered full-time employment by  
15 the department, as determined by rule, and who is not otherwise excluded under sub.  
16 (2) from becoming a participating employee shall become a participating employee  
17 if he or she is subsequently employed by the state agency or other participating  
18 employer for either of the following periods:

19 (a) At least one year for at least two-thirds of what is considered full-time  
20 employment by the department, as determined by rule, or, for an educational support  
21 personnel employee, at least one year for at least two-thirds of what is considered  
22 full-time employment for a teacher.

23 (b) At least 1,200 hours in the immediately preceding 12-month period.

24 **SECTION 1156f.** 40.22 (3) (b) of the statutes is renumbered 40.22 (3) (b) 1.

25 **SECTION 1156g.** 40.22 (3) (b) 2. of the statutes is created to read:

1           40.22 (3) (b) 2. The first day after completion of one year of employment for at  
2           least two-thirds of what is considered full-time employment by the department, as  
3           determined by rule, if the person becomes a participating employee under sub. (2r)  
4           after the employer's effective date of participation.

5           **SECTION 1156k.** 40.23 (2m) (er) of the statutes is created to read:

6           40.23 (2m) (er) For a participant who initially becomes a participating  
7           employee on or after the effective date of this paragraph .... [LRB inserts date], all  
8           of the following shall apply:

9           1. If the participant has less than 1 year of creditable service, the annuity  
10          amount under par. (e) shall be reduced by 50 percent.

11          2. If the participant has at least 1 year of creditable service, but less than 2  
12          years of creditable service, the annuity amount under par. (e) shall be reduced by 40  
13          percent.

14          3. If the participant has at least 2 years of creditable service, but less than 3  
15          years of creditable service, the annuity amount under par. (e) shall be reduced by 30  
16          percent.

17          4. If the participant has at least 3 years of creditable service, but less than 4  
18          years of creditable service, the annuity amount under par. (e) shall be reduced by 20  
19          percent.

20          5. If the participant has at least 4 years of creditable service, but less than 5  
21          years of creditable service, the annuity amount under par. (e) shall be reduced by 10  
22          percent.

23          **SECTION 1156p.** 40.23 (3) of the statutes is renumbered 40.23 (3) (a) and  
24          amended to read:

1           40.23 (3) (a) The Except as provided in par. (b), the initial monthly amount of  
2           any retirement annuity in the normal form shall not be less than the money purchase  
3           annuity which can be provided by applying the sum of the participant's accumulated  
4           additional and required contributions, including interest credited to the  
5           accumulations, plus an amount from the employer accumulation reserve equal to the  
6           participant's accumulated required contributions, less any accumulated  
7           contributions to purchase other governmental service under s. 40.25 (7), 2001 stats.,  
8           or s. 40.285 (2) (b) to fund the annuity in accordance with the actuarial tables in effect  
9           on the annuity effective date.

10           **SECTION 1156t.** 40.23 (3) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

11           40.23 (3) (b) For a participant who initially becomes a participating employee  
12           on or after the effective date of this paragraph .... [LRB inserts date], all of the  
13           following shall apply for purposes of calculating a money purchase annuity under  
14           par. (a):

15           1. If the participant has less than 1 year of creditable service, there shall be no  
16           amount from the employer accumulation reserve.

17           2. If the participant has at least 1 year of creditable service, but less than 2  
18           years of creditable service, the amount from the employer accumulation reserve shall  
19           equal 20 percent of the participant's accumulated required contributions.

20           3. If the participant has at least 2 years of creditable service, but less than 3  
21           years of creditable service, the amount from the employer accumulation reserve shall  
22           equal 40 percent of the participant's accumulated required contributions.

23           4. If the participant has at least 3 years of creditable service, but less than 4  
24           years of creditable service, the amount from the employer accumulation reserve shall  
25           equal 60 percent of the participant's accumulated required contributions.

1           5. If the participant has at least 4 years of creditable service, but less than 5  
2 years of creditable service, the amount from the employer accumulation reserve shall  
3 equal 80 percent of the participant's accumulated required contributions.

4           **SECTION 1156ym.** 40.51 (7) of the statutes, as affected by 2011 Wisconsin Act  
5 10, is repealed and recreated to read:

6           40.51 (7) (a) Any employer, other than the state, may offer to all of its employees  
7 a health care coverage plan through a program offered by the group insurance board.  
8 Notwithstanding sub. (2) and ss. 40.05 (4) and 40.52 (1), the department may by rule  
9 establish different eligibility standards or contribution requirements for such  
10 employees and employers and may by rule limit the categories of employers, other  
11 than the state, which may be included as participating employers under this  
12 subchapter. Beginning on January 1, 2012, except as otherwise provided in a  
13 collective bargaining agreement under subch. IV of ch. 111 and except as provided  
14 in par. (b), an employer may not offer a health care coverage plan to its employees  
15 under this subsection if the employer pays more than 88 percent of the average  
16 premium cost of plans offered in any tier with the lowest employee premium cost  
17 under this subsection.

18           (b) 1. A municipal employer shall pay, on behalf of a nonrepresented law  
19 enforcement or fire fighting managerial employee or a nonrepresented managerial  
20 employee described in s. 111.70 (1) (mm) 2., who was initially employed by the  
21 municipal employer before the effective date of this subdivision .... [LRB inserts  
22 date], the same percentage under par. (a) that is paid by the municipal employer for  
23 represented law enforcement or fire fighting personnel or personnel described in s.  
24 111.70 (1) (mm) 2. who were initially employed by the municipal employer before the  
25 effective date of this subdivision .... [LRB inserts date].

1           2. A municipal employer shall pay, on behalf of a represented law enforcement  
2 or fire fighting employee, who was initially employed by the municipal employer  
3 before the effective date of this subdivision .... [LRB inserts date], and who on or after  
4 the effective date of this subdivision .... [LRB inserts date], became employed in a  
5 nonrepresented law enforcement or fire fighting managerial position with the same  
6 municipal employer, or a successor municipal employer in the event of a combined  
7 department that is created on or after the effective date of this subdivision .... [LRB  
8 inserts date], the same percentage under par. (a) that is paid by the municipal  
9 employer for represented law enforcement or fire fighting personnel who were  
10 initially employed by the municipal employer before the effective date of this  
11 subdivision .... [LRB inserts date].

12           **SECTION 1160.** 40.55 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

13           40.55 (1) Except as provided in sub. (5), the state shall offer, through the group  
14 insurance board, to eligible employees under s. 40.02 (25) (bm) and to state  
15 annuitants long-term care insurance policies which have been filed with the office  
16 of the commissioner of insurance and which have been approved for offering under  
17 contracts established by the group insurance board ~~if the insurer requests that the~~  
18 ~~policy be offered and the.~~ The state shall also allow an eligible employee or a state  
19 annuitant to purchase those policies for his or her spouse, domestic partner, or  
20 parent.

21           **SECTION 1161.** 40.62 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

22           40.62 (2) Sick leave accumulation shall be determined in accordance with rules  
23 of the department, any collective bargaining agreement under subch. I, V, or VI of  
24 ch. 111, and ss. 13.121 (4), 36.30, 49.825 (4) (d) and (5) (d), 49.826 (4) (d), 230.35 (2),  
25 233.10, 238.04 (8), 757.02 (5) and 978.12 (3).

1           **SECTION 1163.** 40.95 (1) (a) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

2           40.95 (1) (a) 1. The employee accrues accumulated unused sick leave under s.  
3           13.121 (4), 36.30, 230.35 (2), 233.10, 238.04 (8), or 757.02 (5).

4           **SECTION 1164.** 41.11 (1g) (b) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

5           41.11 (1g) (b) (intro.) The department, in consultation with the ~~department of~~  
6           ~~commerce~~ Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation, shall do all of the  
7           following for each economic development program administered by the department:

8           **SECTION 1165.** 41.11 (1r) (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

9           41.11 (1r) (title)   ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE COORDINATION AND  
10          REPORTING.

11          **SECTION 1166.** 41.11 (1r) of the statutes is renumbered 41.11 (1r) (b) and  
12          amended to read:

13          41.11 (1r) (b) Annually, no later than October 1, the department shall submit  
14          to the joint legislative audit committee and to the appropriate standing committees  
15          of the legislature under s. 13.172 (3) a comprehensive report assessing economic  
16          development programs, as defined in sub. (1g) (a), administered by the department.  
17          The report shall include all of the information required under s. ~~560.01 (2) (am)~~  
18          238.07 (2). The department shall collaborate with the ~~department of commerce~~  
19          Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation to make readily accessible to the  
20          public on an Internet-based system the information required under this subsection.

21          **SECTION 1167.** 41.11 (1r) (a) of the statutes is created to read:

22          41.11 (1r) (a) The department shall coordinate any economic development  
23          assistance with the Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation.

24          **SECTION 1167g.** 41.11 (6) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

1           41.11 (6) (c) In each biennium, at least \$50,000 for grants to America's Black  
2 ~~Holocaust Museum in the city of Milwaukee~~ to conduct or contract for marketing to  
3 promote multicultural events taking place in Wisconsin.

4           **SECTION 1167h.** 41.11 (6) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

5           41.11 (6) (d) In each biennium, at least \$200,000 for grants to the Milwaukee  
6 Public Museum ~~for Native American~~ to promote exhibits and activities at the  
7 Milwaukee Public Museum.

8           **SECTION 1168.** 41.41 (4) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

9           41.41 (4) (c) The department of agriculture, trade and consumer protection, the  
10 department of natural resources, the department of transportation, ~~the department~~  
11 ~~of commerce,~~ the department of administration, the state historical society, and the  
12 University of Wisconsin-Extension shall cooperate with and assist the board in  
13 matters related to its functions.

14           **SECTION 1169.** 41.41 (5) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

15           41.41 (5) (e) Consult and cooperate with the department of agriculture, trade  
16 and consumer protection, the department of natural resources, the department of  
17 transportation, ~~the department of commerce,~~ the department of administration, the  
18 state historical society, the University of Wisconsin-Extension, any federally  
19 recognized American Indian tribe or band in this state that appoints a liaison  
20 representative to the board regarding the management of the Kickapoo valley  
21 reserve.

22           **SECTION 1170.** 42.09 (3) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

23           42.09 (3) (b) The board shall develop policies encouraging each private person  
24 entering into an agreement with the board under this subsection to agree that his  
25 or her goal shall be to ensure that at least 25% of the employees hired to perform



1 construction work in connection with state fair park facilities or to perform  
2 professional services in connection with the construction or development of those  
3 facilities will be minority group members, as defined in s. ~~560.036~~ 16.287 (1) (f), and  
4 that at least 5% of the employees hired to perform construction work in connection  
5 with state fair park facilities or to perform professional services in connection with  
6 the construction or development of those facilities will be women.

7 **SECTION 1171.** 43.15 (2) (a) of the statutes is renumbered 43.15 (2).

8 **SECTION 1172.** 43.15 (2) (b) to (e) of the statutes are repealed.

9 **SECTION 1173.** 43.15 (4) (c) 5. of the statutes is repealed.

10 **SECTION 1174.** 43.15 (4) (e) of the statutes is repealed.

11 **SECTION 1175.** 43.15 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 43.15 (5) CAPITAL COSTS EXCLUDED. For the purpose of determining the amount  
13 of financial support required under ~~subs. (2) (b) and sub. (4) (b) 2. and (e) 5.~~, amounts  
14 spent for capital projects shall be excluded.

15 **SECTION 1176.** 43.53 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 43.53 (2) (a) Name one of the participants as the library's fiscal agent, who is  
17 responsible for the payroll, benefit administration, insurance, and financial record  
18 keeping and auditing for the library. The participant's costs of providing the services  
19 under this paragraph count toward the financial support required of the participant  
20 under s. 43.15 ~~(2) (b) or (4) (b) 2. or (e) 5.~~

21 **SECTION 1177.** Chapter 44 (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

## 22 **CHAPTER 44**

### 23 **HISTORICAL SOCIETIES AND ARTS**

#### 24 **BOARD HISTORICAL PRESERVATION**

25 **SECTION 1179.** 44.02 (12) of the statutes is amended to read:

1           44.02 (12) Be the custodian of the official series of the portraits of the governors  
2 of Wisconsin under s. 44.53 41.53 (1) (g) and maintain the portraits in proper  
3 condition. The society may permit any or all of the portraits to be exhibited in such  
4 state buildings for such periods of time as it deems feasible.

5           **SECTION 1182.** Subchapter III (title) of chapter 44 [precedes 44.51] of the  
6 statutes is renumbered subchapter IV (title) of chapter 41 [precedes 41.51].

7           **SECTION 1183.** 44.51 (intro.) and (1) of the statutes are consolidated,  
8 renumbered 41.51 and amended to read:

9           **41.51 Definitions.** In this subchapter, unless the context requires otherwise:  
10 ~~(1) “Board”~~ otherwise, “board” means the arts board.

11           **SECTION 1184.** 44.51 (1m) of the statutes is repealed.

12           **SECTION 1185.** 44.51 (2) of the statutes is repealed.

13           **SECTION 1186.** 44.51 (3) of the statutes is repealed.

14           **SECTION 1187.** 44.53 (title) of the statutes is renumbered 41.53 (title).

15           **SECTION 1188.** 44.53 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is renumbered 41.53 (1) (intro.).

16           **SECTION 1189.** 44.53 (1) (a) of the statutes is renumbered 41.53 (1) (a).

17           **SECTION 1190.** 44.53 (1) (b) of the statutes is renumbered 41.53 (1) (b).

18           **SECTION 1191.** 44.53 (1) (c) of the statutes is renumbered 41.53 (1) (c).

19           **SECTION 1192.** 44.53 (1) (d) of the statutes is renumbered 41.53 (1) (d).

20           **SECTION 1193.** 44.53 (1) (e) of the statutes is renumbered 41.53 (1) (e).

21           **SECTION 1194.** 44.53 (1) (f) of the statutes is renumbered 41.53 (1) (f) and  
22 amended to read:

23           41.53 (1) (f) Plan and implement, when funds are available in the  
24 appropriations under s. ~~20-215 (1)~~ 20.380 (3) (b) and (o), a program of contracts with  
25 or grants-in-aid to groups or, in appropriate cases, individuals of exceptional talent

1 engaged in or concerned with the arts. No grantee may receive any funds distributed  
2 as grants-in-aid under this paragraph unless the grantee provides at least 50% of  
3 the estimated total cost of the project, either in the form of moneys or in-kind  
4 contributions of equivalent value, to be funded under this paragraph.

5 **SECTION 1195.** 44.53 (1) (fm) of the statutes is renumbered 41.53 (1) (fm) and  
6 amended to read:

7 41.53 (1) (fm) Conduct a program identical to that described in par. (f), but only  
8 for American Indian individuals and groups. The program shall be funded from the  
9 appropriation under s. ~~20.215 (1)~~ 20.380 (3) (km).

10 **SECTION 1196.** 44.53 (1) (g) of the statutes is renumbered 41.53 (1) (g) and  
11 amended to read:

12 41.53 (1) (g) Arrange and schedule the portrait of the governor or any former  
13 governor. Costs incurred under this paragraph shall be charged to the appropriation  
14 under s. ~~20.215 (1)~~ 20.380 (3) (c) up to a limit of \$10,000 per portrait. Costs in excess  
15 of \$10,000 per portrait may be charged to the appropriation under s. ~~20.215 (1)~~  
16 20.380 (3) (c) only with the prior approval of the joint committee on finance.

17 **SECTION 1197.** 44.53 (1) (h) of the statutes is renumbered 41.53 (1) (h) and is  
18 amended to read:

19 41.53 (1) (h) Annually, award an amount equal to at least 5% of all state and  
20 federal funds received by the board in that year for grants to artists and arts  
21 organizations to artists who are minority group members and arts groups composed  
22 principally of minority group members. In this paragraph, "minority group member"  
23 has the meaning specified in s. ~~560.036~~ 16.287 (1) (f).

24 **SECTION 1198.** 44.53 (1) (i) of the statutes is renumbered 41.53 (1) (i).

1           **SECTION 1199.** 44.53 (1) (j) of the statutes is renumbered 41.53 (1) (j) and  
2 amended to read:

3           41.53 (1) (j) Annually pay to the Milwaukee Foundation, Inc., for deposit in the  
4 High Point fund, the amount appropriated under s. ~~20.215 (1)~~ 20.380 (3) (e).

5           **SECTION 1200.** 44.53 (2) (intro.) of the statutes is renumbered 41.53 (2) (intro.).

6           **SECTION 1201.** 44.53 (2) (a) of the statutes is renumbered 41.53 (2) (a).

7           **SECTION 1202.** 44.53 (2) (am) of the statutes is renumbered 41.53 (2) (am).

8           **SECTION 1203.** 44.53 (2) (b) of the statutes is renumbered 41.53 (2) (b).

9           **SECTION 1204.** 44.53 (2) (c) of the statutes is renumbered 41.53 (2) (c) and  
10 amended to read:

11           41.53 (2) (c) Award an operational grant to an organization if the sum of all  
12 operational grants awarded in the current year does not exceed 50% of the sum of all  
13 grants awarded to organizations from the appropriations under s. ~~20.215 (1)~~ 20.380  
14 (3) (b) and (o) in the current year. In this paragraph, “operational grant” means a  
15 grant awarded by the board to support those administrative costs of an organization  
16 that are not directly related to the development of an artistic performance or product.

17           **SECTION 1205d.** 44.55 of the statutes is renumbered 41.55.

18           **SECTION 1206.** 44.56 (title) of the statutes is renumbered 41.56 (title).

19           **SECTION 1207.** 44.56 (1) of the statutes is renumbered 41.56 (1).

20           **SECTION 1208.** 44.56 (2) of the statutes is renumbered 41.56 (2) and amended  
21 to read:

22           41.56 (2) Every recipient of a grant awarded by the board under the board’s  
23 general grants program or community arts program from the appropriation under  
24 s. ~~20.215 (1)~~ 20.380 (3) (b) shall perform a public service which that shall be mutually  
25 agreed upon by the board and the grant recipient at the time the grant is awarded.

1           **SECTION 1209.** 44.565 (title) of the statutes is renumbered 41.565 (title).

2           **SECTION 1210.** 44.565 (1) of the statutes is renumbered 41.565 (1).

3           **SECTION 1211.** 44.565 (2) (a) of the statutes is renumbered 41.565 (2) (a) and  
4 amended to read:

5           41.565 (2) (a) From the appropriation under s. ~~20.215 (1)~~ 20.380 (3) (d), the  
6 board shall award arts challenge initiative grants to arts organizations and local arts  
7 agencies.

8           **SECTION 1212.** 44.565 (2) (b) (intro.) of the statutes is renumbered 41.565 (2)  
9 (b) (intro.) and amended to read:

10           41.565 (2) (b) (intro.) The board shall award grants from the appropriation  
11 under s. ~~20.215 (1)~~ 20.380 (3) (d) to match up to 25% of an arts organization's or a local  
12 arts agency's income from contributions for the fiscal year in which a grant may be  
13 awarded ~~which~~ that exceeds the amount of income from contributions in the previous  
14 fiscal year and income from earned income ~~which~~ that exceeds the amount of earned  
15 income from the previous fiscal year in that fiscal year subject to the following  
16 requirements:

17           **SECTION 1213.** 44.565 (2) (b) 1. of the statutes is renumbered 41.565 (2) (b) 1.

18           **SECTION 1214.** 44.565 (2) (b) 2. of the statutes is renumbered 41.565 (2) (b) 2.

19           **SECTION 1215.** 44.565 (2) (c) of the statutes is renumbered 41.565 (2) (c).

20           **SECTION 1216.** 44.565 (2) (d) of the statutes is renumbered 41.565 (2) (d).

21           **SECTION 1217.** 44.565 (2) (e) of the statutes is renumbered 41.565 (2) (e).

22           **SECTION 1218.** 44.565 (3) of the statutes is renumbered 41.565 (3) and amended  
23 to read:

24           41.565 (3) If the amount in the appropriation under s. ~~20.215 (1)~~ 20.380 (3) (d)  
25 in any fiscal year is insufficient to fund all grants under this section, the board shall

1 award grants, including the minimum and maximum grants under sub. (2) (e), on  
2 a prorated basis.

3 **SECTION 1219.** 44.565 (4) of the statutes is renumbered 41.565 (4).

4 **SECTION 1220.** 44.57 (1) of the statutes is repealed.

5 **SECTION 1221.** 44.57 (2) of the statutes is repealed.

6 **SECTION 1222.** 44.57 (3) of the statutes is repealed.

7 **SECTION 1223.** 44.57 (4) of the statutes is repealed.

8 **SECTION 1224.** 44.57 (5) (intro.) of the statutes is renumbered 41.57 (5) (intro.)  
9 and amended to read:

10 41.57 (5) BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES. (intro.) After acquisition of the work of art  
11 under ~~sub. (4) s. 44.57 (4), 2009 stats.,~~ the board shall:

12 **SECTION 1225.** 44.57 (5) (a) of the statutes is repealed.

13 **SECTION 1226.** 44.57 (5) (b) of the statutes is repealed.

14 **SECTION 1227.** 44.57 (5) (c) of the statutes is renumbered 41.57 (5) (c) and  
15 amended to read:

16 41.57 (5) (c) Cooperate with the bureau of facilities management and consult  
17 with the artist or the artist's representative to ensure that each work of art acquired  
18 under ~~this section s. 44.57 (4), 2009 stats.,~~ is properly maintained and is not  
19 artistically altered without the consent of the artist or the artist's representative.

20 **SECTION 1228.** 44.57 (5) (d) of the statutes is renumbered 41.57 (5) (d) and  
21 amended to read:

22 41.57 (5) (d) Ensure that any work of art acquired under ~~this section s. 44.57~~  
23 ~~(4), 2009 stats.,~~ is maintained and displayed on the grounds of the state building for  
24 at least 25 years, unless the board finds that earlier removal is in the public interest.  
25 When the board, in consultation with the agency making principal use of the building

1 to which the work of art is appurtenant, determines that the work of art should be  
2 removed, the board shall loan the work of art to an accredited museum in the state  
3 or to an educational or other appropriate public institution capable of maintaining  
4 and exhibiting the work of art.

5 **SECTION 1229.** 44.60 of the statutes is renumbered 41.60.

6 **SECTION 1230.** 44.62 (title) of the statutes is renumbered 41.62 (title).

7 **SECTION 1231.** 44.62 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is renumbered 41.62 (1) (intro.).

8 **SECTION 1232.** 44.62 (1) (a) of the statutes is renumbered 41.62 (1) (a) and  
9 amended to read:

10 41.62 (1) (a) "Local arts agency" has the meaning given in s. ~~44.565~~ 41.565 (1).

11 **SECTION 1233.** 44.62 (1) (b) of the statutes is renumbered 41.62 (1) (b).

12 **SECTION 1234.** 44.62 (2) of the statutes is renumbered 41.62 (2) and amended  
13 to read:

14 41.62 (2) Subject to sub. (3), the board shall award grants under the Wisconsin  
15 regranting program to local arts agencies and municipalities. Grants shall be  
16 awarded from the appropriations under s. ~~20.215 (1)~~ 20.380 (3) (f) and (j).

17 **SECTION 1235.** 44.62 (3) of the statutes is renumbered 41.62 (3).

18 **SECTION 1236.** 44.62 (4) of the statutes is renumbered 41.62 (4).

19 **SECTION 1239x.** 45.03 (13) (L) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 45.03 (13) (L) Provide verification to the educational institution of the  
21 information required under s. 36.27 (3p) (a) 1r. or 38.24 (8) (a) 1r.

22 **SECTION 1240x.** 45.03 (13) (m) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 45.03 (13) (m) Provide verification to the educational institution of the  
24 information required under s. 36.27 (3n) (a) 1m. or 38.24 (7) (a) 1m.

25 **SECTION 1242.** 45.03 (20) of the statutes is repealed.

1           **SECTION 1245.** 45.20 (2) (a) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

2           45.20 (2) (a) 1. The department shall administer a tuition reimbursement  
3 program for eligible veterans enrolling as undergraduates in any institution of  
4 higher education in this state, enrolling in a school that is approved under s. 45.03  
5 (11), enrolling in a proprietary school that is approved under s. 38.50, enrolling in a  
6 public or private high school, enrolling in a tribal school, as defined in s. ~~115.011~~  
7 115.001 (15m), in any grade from 9 to 12, or receiving a waiver of nonresident tuition  
8 under s. 39.47.

9           **SECTION 1248m.** 45.41 (3m) of the statutes is created to read:

10          45.41 (3m) If the total amount of payments to be paid under sub. (2) (a) to (c)  
11 exceeds the amount available for the payments from the appropriation under s.  
12 20.485 (2) (vw), the department shall prorate the reimbursement payments among  
13 the state veterans organizations receiving the payments.

14          **SECTION 1249.** 45.50 (1) (a) of the statutes is renumbered 45.50 (1) and  
15 amended to read:

16          45.50 (1) VETERANS HOME AT KING. The department shall operate the Wisconsin  
17 Veterans Home at King and employ a commandant for the home. ~~The department~~  
18 ~~shall employ a commandant for the Wisconsin Veterans Home at Union Grove and~~  
19 ~~may employ a commandant for the Wisconsin Veterans Home at Chippewa Falls.~~  
20 ~~The department may employ any personnel that are necessary for the proper~~  
21 ~~management and operation of veterans homes. In compliance with the~~  
22 ~~compensation plan established pursuant to s. 230.12 (3), a commandant may~~  
23 ~~recommend to the director of personnel charges for meals, living quarters, laundry,~~  
24 ~~and other services furnished to employees and members of the employees' family~~  
25 ~~maintained at veterans homes. The department shall provide complete personal~~



1 ~~maintenance and medical care, including programs and facilities that promote~~  
2 ~~comfort, recreation, well-being, or rehabilitation, to all members of veterans homes.~~

3 **SECTION 1250.** 45.50 (1) (b) of the statutes is renumbered 45.50 (2m) (e) and  
4 amended to read:

5 45.50 (2m) (e) All moneys received as reimbursement for services to veterans  
6 homes employees or as payment for meals served to guests at veterans homes shall  
7 be accumulated in an account named "employee maintenance credits" and shall be  
8 paid into the general fund within one week after receipt and credited to the  
9 appropriation account under s. 20.485 (1) (gk). This paragraph does not apply to any  
10 agreement entered into pursuant to par. (c).

11 **SECTION 1251.** 45.50 (1) (c) of the statutes is renumbered 45.50 (2m) (d) and  
12 amended to read:

13 45.50 (2m) (d) Veterans homes with a skilled nursing facility shall include a  
14 geriatric evaluation, research, and education program. The program staff shall be  
15 funded from the appropriations under s. 20.485 (1) (hm), (j), and (mj).

16 **SECTION 1252.** 45.50 (2) (a) of the statutes is renumbered 45.50 (2b) and  
17 amended to read:

18 45.50 (2b) Subject to authorization under ss. 13.48 (10) and 20.924 (1), the  
19 department may construct or renovate and operate residential, treatment, and  
20 nursing care facilities, including a community-based residential facility, to be known  
21 as the Wisconsin Veterans Home at Union Grove. The department shall employ a  
22 commandant for the Wisconsin Veterans Home at Union Grove.

23 **SECTION 1253.** 45.50 (2) (b) of the statutes is renumbered 45.50 (2d) and  
24 amended to read:

1           45.50 (2d) Subject to authorization under ss. 13.48 (10) and 20.924 (1), the  
2 department may develop, construct or renovate, and operate residential, treatment,  
3 and nursing care facilities and programs for veterans in northwestern Wisconsin, on  
4 the property of the Northern Wisconsin Center for the Developmentally Disabled in  
5 Chippewa Falls to be known as the Wisconsin Veterans Home at Chippewa Falls.  
6 The programs and facilities may include an assisted living facility, a skilled nursing  
7 facility, a medical clinic, an adult day health care center, an activities center, and a  
8 veterans assistance program. The department may employ a commandant for the  
9 Wisconsin Veterans Home at Chippewa Falls.

10           **SECTION 1254.** 45.50 (2b) (title) of the statutes is created to read:

11           45.50 (2b) (title) VETERANS HOME AT UNION GROVE.

12           **SECTION 1255.** 45.50 (2d) (title) of the statutes is created to read:

13           45.50 (2d) (title) VETERANS HOME AT CHIPPEWA FALLS.

14           **SECTION 1256.** 45.50 (2m) (title) of the statutes is created to read:

15           45.50 (2m) (title) SERVICES; STAFFING OF HOMES.

16           **SECTION 1257.** 45.50 (2m) (a) of the statutes is created to read:

17           45.50 (2m) (a) The department shall provide complete personal maintenance  
18 and medical care, including programs and facilities that promote comfort,  
19 recreation, well-being, or rehabilitation, to all members of veterans homes.

20           **SECTION 1258.** 45.50 (2m) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

21           45.50 (2m) (b) The department may employ any personnel that are necessary  
22 for the proper management and operation of veterans homes. In compliance with the  
23 compensation plan established pursuant to s. 230.12 (3), a commandant may  
24 recommend to the director of personnel charges for meals, living quarters, laundry,